# EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT

# HRM-100

Approved by CAO & CLT: February 2025



# Contents

1. Intro	pduction	4
1.1	The Code	4
1.2	The City's Culture	4
1.3	Expected Behaviours	5
1.3.1	1 Tell the Truth	5
1.3.2	2 Make Well-informed Decisions	5
1.3.3	3 Uphold the law	5
1.3.4	4 Respect other professional Codes of Conduct	5
1.3.	5 Comply with policies and procedures	6
1.4	Dress Code	6
1.5	Supporting the Community	6
1.6	A Shared Commitment	6
1.7	Consequences of Non-Compliance	6
1.8	Responsibilities for Leaders	6
2. Spe	ak Up, Raise Concerns and Report Misconduct	7
2.1.1	1 Speaking Up and Raising Concerns	7
2.1.2	2 If feeling unsure	7
2.2	Reporting Misconduct	7
2.3	Investigations	8
2.4	Commitment to Non-Retaliation	8
3. Prot	ect Information and Interests	8
3.1	Protecting Confidential Information	8
3.1.1	1 Protecting Customer Information	9
3.1.2	2 Protecting the City's Information	9
3.2	Responding to the Media	9
3.3	Using Social Media Responsibly	10
3.3.1	1 Official Use	10
3.3.2	2 Personal Use	10
3.4	Acting Responsibly	10
4. Fost	ter a Safe and Healthy Workplace	11
4.1	Valuing Everyone's Health and Safety at Work	11
4.2	Be Fit for Work	11
4.3	Preventing Workplace Violence	12
5. Trea	at People with Care	12
5.1	Maintaining a Respectful Workplace	12

5.2	Strengthening Diversity, Equity and Inclusion
6. Con	duct Business with Integrity13
6.1	Preventing Fraud13
6.2	Reimbursement of Legal Expenses 14
6.3	Avoiding Conflicts of Interest
6.3.1	1 Outside Interests
6.3.2	2 Personal Relationships 14
6.3.3	3 Political Activity and Support14
6.4	Managing Gifts and Entertainment15
6.4.1	1 Gifts
6.4.2	2 Entertainment
7. Safe	eguard Our Assets
7.1	Using City Property Responsibly16
7.2	Managing Expenses Responsibly16
7.3	Managing Risk17
8. Adm	inistration of the Code17
8.1	Acknowledgments and Renewals 17
8.2	Code Interpretation
8.3	Review and Approval17
8.4	Revision History

# 1. Introduction

#### 1.1 The Code

City of Brampton employees reflect the diverse and dynamic makeup of the City. The Code of Conduct (the "Code") is about the values, principles, and standards of behaviour that govern actions as City employees. Based on values, the Code sets the standard for a safe and respectful workplace, protects the collective reputation of the City, and strengthens the commitment to make Brampton a connected, inclusive, and innovative place to work and live.

The Code guides the actions and conduct of employees as representatives of the City—to build trust and confidence within the organization and the community. It speaks to employees' responsibilities to the City, to each other, and to the public.

While volunteers are not employees of the Corporation, they are expected to comply with the Code. Members of Council are governed by a separate Code of Conduct for Members of Council.

The Code guides employees:

- To live the City's values and protect the City's reputation.
- To be honest, ethical, fair, and transparent.
- To think critically, to act objectively and impartially.
- To make well-informed decisions every day.
- To build trust with the public.
- To comply with laws, regulations, standards, policies and procedures.
- To seek resources for assistance.

The Code of Conduct is organized into themes, to provide a common reference for standards of behaviour. It helps employees understand what to expect and what is expected of employees in the workplace. There are five themes that employees are responsible for: *Protect Information and Interests, Foster a Safe and Healthy Workplace, Treat People with Care, Conduct Business with Integrity,* and *Safeguard Assets.* 

#### Definitions:

Employee - means any of the following:

a) a person who performs work or supplies services for monetary compensation;

 b) a secondary school student who performs work or supplies services for no monetary compensation under a work experience program authorized by the school board that operates the school in which the student is enrolled;

c) a person who performs work or supplies services for no monetary compensation under a program approved by a college, university, private career college, or other post-secondary institution.

**Volunteer -** means a person who performs tasks and/or services without monetary compensation or expectation of monetary compensation.

The City of Brampton's Values are Courage, Trust, Integrity, Compassion and Equity—they are what City employees stand for.

*Courage* means being curious, determined, resilient and bold. *Trust* means being respectful, vulnerable and humble. *Compassion* means being considerate and patient. *Integrity* means being authentic, transparent, principled and honest. *Equity* is the belief and practice of fairness in our personal and systemic relationships.

The respect employees have for each other, customers and the public is rooted in the City's values. Employees demonstrate them in the way they build relationships and how they make decisions. The Code incorporates the City's values and guides employees to live them in day-to-day work.

*'Living the City's Values'* means that employees act without malice, judgment, or to seek benefit. It means having the courage for difficult conversations, putting trust in laws, legislation, policies, and procedures, having integrity and standing up for what one believes in, and about showing compassion in times of need.

Living the City's values can be challenging at times. It requires strength, knowledge, resilience, and perseverance. It is more than just being aware of the values or following the Code employees need to weave them into operations and behaviours to ensure respect, lawfulness, and compliance. These foundational pieces will build and sustain trust—the core of the relationships with each other and the community we serve.

# 1.3 Expected Behaviours

## 1.3.1 Tell the Truth

Work and relationships require trust. The City, the community and colleagues rely on employees to be honest and responsible. Employees will honour commitments—do what they say they will do—to build trust and sustain it.

## 1.3.2 Make Well-informed Decisions

Employees must conduct themselves with integrity and compassion. Employees will place careful thought into actions and decisions, applying critical thinking, knowledge and skill. Employees will apply best efforts to carry out civic responsibilities and preserve the City's collective reputation.

## 1.3.3 Uphold the law

The City's operations are subject to laws and regulations. The City's policies and procedures comply with legal and regulatory obligations, with the intent and in the spirit of the laws that apply. This helps the City preserve its reputation for acting responsibly and with integrity. Breaking the law could result in civil, criminal and regulatory penalties, including fines for the City and the individual involved.

## 1.3.4 Respect other professional Codes of Conduct

Some employees may be accountable to uphold the principles of other professional codes of conduct (e.g. accountants, lawyers, engineers, planners, human resources professionals). Anyone in such a position is encouraged and supported to do so. If a situation arises that may cause conflict or confusion, speak to a leader or Human Resources.

# 1.3.5 Comply with policies and procedures

All employees are responsible for knowing, understanding and following the City's policies, directives, standard operating procedures, and guidelines that apply. Employees will comply with a leader's directive unless it is contrary to the City's values, policies, against the law or may result in health or safety risks. Employees must always be aware of the policies and procedures specific to their business and work within the boundaries of what they have the authority to do.

# 1.4 Dress Code

It is the City of Brampton's expectation that employees will observe a standard of attire and footwear appropriate to the duties, responsibilities, and requirements of their position, inclusive of all gender identities and expressions, abilities, ethnicities, and/or religious affiliations. Clothing with inappropriate, obscene, offensive and/or discriminatory logos, statements/messages and/or images are prohibited.

Employees are expected to maintain a professional, respectful, and clean appearance always, whether in-office, in a remote workspace or virtual, dressing in a manner appropriate for the work being performed and consistent with the City's health and safety policies, procedures, protocols and considerations. Employees not required to wear a uniform may wear business casual attire provided formal business attire is worn where required or otherwise communicated (such as Council and Committee meetings).

People Leaders are responsible for enforcing wearing appropriate attire as per the City's dress code guidelines and health and safety requirements. Any employee in violation of the City's dress code expectation will be asked to immediately bring their attire into compliance. This may include being asked to leave work, change clothes, and return in a suitable attire. Employees will not be compensated for lost work time if they must return home or stop work to change. Repeated or extreme violations of this attire code may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

## 1.5 Supporting the Community

Employees support the communities where they live, work and do business. The City's values and the Code serve as the foundation for behaviour when employees represent the City at work or in communities. Employee behaviour should be beyond reproach in all dealings and particularly for the community served. The City takes pride in all contributions, and encourages employees to volunteer and participate in the community (e.g. charitable food drive).

## 1.6 A Shared Commitment

The Code of Conduct applies to everyone, and everyone has the responsibility to follow it. Understanding and complying with the Code is a condition of employment. Employees abide by the Code for the well-being of the City, its operations, and its employees.

# 1.7 Consequences of Non-Compliance

Anyone who breaches the Code of Conduct or fails to report an actual or potential breach of the Code of Conduct is subject to corrective action. Corrective action is the City's response to unacceptable behaviour and can range from the use of disciplinary or non-disciplinary methods. Discipline can result in action up to and including termination of employment. Some violations or behaviours may also result in a legal response including civil litigation, or the involvement of the police. Examples include, but are not limited to, theft, fraud, and violence.

While all employees are required to act in accordance with the City's values, leaders have additional responsibilities under the Code of Conduct. The City expects those who lead or supervise others, to demonstrate ethical leadership and set the right tone by:

- Modeling appropriate behaviours that are consistent with the Code and City values.
- Fostering a positive work environment in which only legal, ethical, responsible and appropriate behaviours are acceptable.
- Promoting team awareness and understanding of the City's Code, values, policies and procedures to ensure ongoing compliance.
- Identifying and mitigating ethics and compliance risks.
- Responding appropriately and in a timely way to colleagues who seek advice, raise concerns and/or report misconduct in a manner that offers security and ease to do so.
- Managing conflict of interest situations to achieve fair and appropriate outcomes.
- Promptly escalating concerns and reports of actual or potential misconduct and following up to ensure they are addressed.
- Consult with the Human Resources Business Partner as needed for interpretation and application of the Code.

# 2. Speak Up, Raise Concerns and Report Misconduct

## 2.1.1 Speaking Up and Raising Concerns

The Code and City policies explain the ethical behaviours that the City expects of employees however, they cannot anticipate every situation that employees may encounter. The City takes violations of the Code very seriously so, speak up and raise concerns to ensure that employees, the community, and the City's reputation are protected. The City will address all questions and concerns.

#### 2.1.2 If feeling unsure

Sometimes, individuals know when something is wrong—it just feels wrong. Other times, it is hard to tell if an action does, or will break the Code, a City policy, procedure or law. Use the City's values and the Code to inform best judgment, and when in doubt, seek clarification from a trusted leader, or Human Resources in times of uncertainty.

If there are doubts, ask these questions:

- Is it legal?
- Does it comply with City policies and procedures?
- Is it in line with the City's corporate values?
- Would I be comfortable if my actions were made public?
- Would it be okay if everyone did it?

If the answer is 'NO' to any of these questions, stop what is happening.

If the answer is 'YES' to all of these questions, carry on and move forward.

If the answer is 'I DON'T KNOW' to any of these questions, ask someone for help.

## 2.2 Reporting Misconduct

Every employee has a duty to report actual or suspected misconduct, even one's own. Employees must immediately notify a leader and/or Human Resources of misconduct that includes violations of the Code, policies and the law.

• If an employee is asked to commit (or believe that we have been witness to) a

potentially illegal or unethical act, they must report it immediately.

• If an employee becomes aware of a breach of the Code or any other situation that could place the City at risk of loss or harm, they must report it immediately.

The City will investigate these reports promptly, and keep the details confidential, including, where appropriate, the identity of the person making the report. The City will only disclose information to the extent necessary to investigate and address the situation, or as legally required.

# 2.3 Investigations

Reports of concerns, violations or misconduct may be investigated to determine if there was a breach of the Code, policy or law governing conduct. Investigations will be thorough, fair and in accordance with legal obligations. All employees have a duty to cooperate with internal or external investigations concerning alleged misconduct, and provide honest, accurate, complete and timely information. The City will make every effort to protect the confidentiality of the investigation.

# 2.4 Commitment to Non-Retaliation

There will be no retaliation for speaking up and making a truthful report of actual or potential misconduct, for participating in an investigation or for exercising legal rights. Retaliation can include behaviour or actions that punish or deter someone from speaking up such as: negative performance evaluations, creating a hostile work environment, harassment, demotion, dismissal, or assigning tasks with the intent to isolate or discourage someone.

• If an employee encounters any form of retaliation, report it to a leader or Human Resources immediately. The City commits to investigate every claim of retaliation and to take disciplinary action if necessary.

## Consider this when deciding to speak up and raise concerns:

• Does this situation support the City's values of courage, trust, compassion, integrity and equity?

- How would residents, colleagues or business partners view this situation?
- Would the City's reputation be damaged if this situation became public knowledge?

#### Find more information at:

Relevant resources that support the Code: legislation, policies, administrative directives, standard operating procedures, protocols, and guidelines.

# 3. Protect Information and Interests

## 3.1 Protecting Confidential Information

The City's information assets are public property. The City trusts employees to protect the organization's information resources so they can be used effectively to deliver public services. The public trusts employees to protect privacy, ensuring personal information is collected, used and disclosed with caution and care. Employees must manage all information within their care ethically and responsibly.

 Confidential information (which includes personal information) is information that is not public property, is not in the public domain, and/or would cause harm to individuals, or to the City if improperly disclosed. This includes information communicated in confidence.

- Personal information means any information that would identify a specific individual. The City uses the detailed definition provided in the <u>Municipal Freedom of</u> <u>Information and Protection of Privacy Act.</u>
- The inappropriate disclosure of confidential information may result in financial and/or reputational harms and may constitute a privacy breach.
- Confidential information including personal information, should only be accessed and used by staff, when required for legitimate business purposes, and only for the period required to achieve those business purposes.
- Every employee has a responsibility to secure confidential information from the risk of theft, loss, misuse or inappropriate disclosure.
- In the event of a privacy breach or improper disclosure, employees must comply with the City's privacy policies and directives.
- Employees must report a potential or actual breach to the Privacy Officer, Legislative Services, and refrain from sharing details of the breach with anyone who does not have a business need to know.

# 3.1.1 Protecting Customer Information

The City's customers are residents, business partners and anyone that interacts with the City. Customers share personal information with the City and expects the City to protect their privacy. Employees will only share information about customers with their consent, and even then, only for a legitimate business purpose.

Every privacy breach results in a loss of public trust. Employees will always take the proper precautions when collecting, using and sharing information about the City's customers. Employees must always be mindful and take care not to be overheard, leave information visible, behind, or unsecure when working in public spaces.

## 3.1.2 Protecting the City's Information

The City's business information is a critical asset and every employee has an obligation to safeguard it. Employees must always use proper records management processes when creating, using and maintaining, and disposing of records.

#### Remember this when protecting information:

- Privacy protection is everyone's responsibility
- Complete a Privacy Risk Assessment for any new or modified program, service or technology that collects or uses personal information
- Limit the collection and use of personal information
- Don't keep records longer than required, comply with the Records retention bylaw, and ensure records are securely destroyed

#### Find more information in:

Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Municipal Act Information Management Standard Operating Procedure Privacy Administrative Directive GOV-130 Privacy Statement Records Retention By-law The media is an effective way to enhance communication with the community but, employees must also manage media inquiries to ensure consistency and protect the City's reputation. The City's Media Relations section is responsible for the coordination of all communications with the media on behalf of the City. Only those with the proper authority may communicate with media on the City's behalf. Refer all media inquiries to Strategic Communications.

# 3.3 Using Social Media Responsibly

Social media facilitates collaboration, sharing of information, and dynamic discussions. It provides opportunities to enhance outreach and inclusion to engage people. Bear in mind, comments made on social media are permanent and for public consumption.

- The City expects employees to realize that social media is not an appropriate avenue to express personal concerns about the City, colleagues or City business.
- Refrain from sharing information on social media platforms that is not already available to the public, or content that reflects poorly on colleagues or the City.
- Consult with a leader or Human Resources if you have concerns or need to report an issue.

# 3.3.1 Official Use

To ensure that the City's corporate social media use is appropriate and consistent with the City's communication strategy, only media spokespeople have the authority to manage or participate in the City's social media outreach activities.

## 3.3.2 Personal Use

Share, comment and repost City news in ways that honour the Code and reflect the City's values. Always consider the potential impact of personal posts to the City, colleagues, and the community.

#### Consider this when using social media:

- Safeguard personal and professional reputations
- Be respectful words are public and permanent
- Confidential, non-public information relating to the City, customers, employees or other persons or business must never be a part of our social media conversations
- Personal opinions are not the position or view of the City of Brampton
- Be clear and purposeful in communication
- Share the City's great news, stories and events

#### Find more information in:

<u>Official Use of Social Media Administrative Directive – COM-110</u> <u>Personal Use of Social Media by City of Brampton Employees Standard Operating Procedure</u> <u>Media Calls service card</u> Media Releases service card

#### 3.4 Acting Responsibly

The City's reputation and business depends largely upon the behaviour of its employees. Whether an employee is 'on or off the clock', their behaviour and actions may reflect on the City. If employees fail to exercise sound judgment and engage in unethical or immoral conduct, it may reflect negatively on the City. Be mindful and responsible - act in a way that reflects positively on the City and fosters public confidence.

Employee Code of Conduct – Date revised February 2025

# 4. Foster a Safe and Healthy Workplace

# 4.1 Valuing Everyone's Health and Safety at Work

The City is committed to providing a physically and mentally safe work environment through a culture of responsibility and accountability at all levels - employees, leaders and senior leadership. All employees share the responsibility to make health and safety a daily priority. Each employee must adhere to health and safety rules and practices that apply to their jobs, and for taking the necessary precautions to protect colleagues, visitors, and themselves. Employees foster an active health and safety culture by:

- Making responsible choices not accepting or directing unnecessary or unsafe acts.
- Knowing and complying with applicable occupational health and safety laws and City policies.
- Watching out for each other and helping others avoid unsafe conditions.
- Promptly reporting any unhealthy or unsafe conditions or behaviours.

#### Set an example for a safe and healthy workplace:

- Ask questions when unsure about something.
- Volunteer to become a worker member of a Joint Health and Safety Committee.
- Help your health and safety representative or Joint Health and Safety Committee with health and safety inspections by pointing out possible hazards in work areas.
- Take the health and safety training seriously and put it into practice on the job.

(adapted from the Ontario Ministry of Labour))

#### **Find more information in:** Occupational Health and Safety Policy HRM-110

# 4.2 Be Fit for Work

To ensure a safe workplace and prevent potentially dangerous situations, employees perform work safely, and at an acceptable standard, without limitations due to injury, illness, fatigue, or the use of (or aftereffects of) a substance, or other condition (physically or mentally) that may impair performance. Employees must report to their jobs, fit to work (and remain as such) while conducting City of Brampton business.

- Employees will attend to job responsibilities free of any influence from alcohol, cannabis, illegal drugs. Employees taking prescription drugs or over-the-counter drugs with strong side effects should inform their leaders that a medical accommodation may be necessary.
- Illegal drugs or other controlled substances are not permitted and cannot be brought onto City property or work sites.
- Immediately report any abuse (or suspicion of abuse) of alcohol, cannabis, drugs, or an illegal substance to a leader and/or Human Resources.

## EFAP can help:

Any employee who may be experiencing addiction or dependency, or has significant interactions with someone who is experiencing addiction or dependency is encouraged to seek help. The City has resources to support health-related concerns through the Employee and Assistance Plan (EAP).

# 4.3 Preventing Workplace Violence

The City has a proactive approach to violence prevention in the workplace that clearly outlines the expectations of employees (at all levels) when reporting and responding to violent incidents.

- Employees are all responsible for maintaining a workplace free from violence and commit to supporting employees who are victims of violence.
- The City has zero tolerance for violence in the workplace and expects everyone to act appropriately in all dealings with others.
- Immediately report instances of violence or attempted violence to a leader and/or Human Resources.

#### Help create a healthy workplace:

- Address conflict in a constructive and positive way.
- Support colleagues who are dealing with challenges.
- Speak up when witness to disrespectful behaviour.

Find more information in:

Workplace Violence Prevention Policy HRM-120 Preventing and Addressing Workplace Violence Standard Operating Procedure

#### 5. Treat People with Care

#### 5.1 Maintaining a Respectful Workplace

All employees have the right to work in an environment that is respectful and professional, and everyone is responsible for behaving in a way that contributes to a healthy and productive workplace.

- Employees will foster an atmosphere of congeniality and support. Employees will be honest, polite and courteous when dealing with people, including the public, Elected Officials, and colleagues.
- The City expects everyone to treat each other with mutual respect and dignity and to be conscientious of how others may perceive or misunderstand actions and comments.
- Employees (and the City) have zero tolerance for harassment, sexual harassment, bullying, discrimination, disrespect, and inappropriate behaviour under any circumstance.
- Immediately report any instances of harassment or discrimination to leaders and/or Human Resources.

#### Be part of a respectful workplace:

- Show professionalism, courtesy and consideration in everything—from action to
  presentation—personal choices of expression should not be demeaning or threatening.
- Avoid gossip or sharing information that is not true or not to share.
- Do not touch someone if it is unwelcome or uninvited.
- Avoid jokes that are hurtful or belittling.
- Refrain from posting or sending inappropriate messages to (or about) anyone.
- Make decisions that promote a respectful and inclusive workplace.

#### Find more information in:

Respectful Workplace Policy HRM-150 Addressing Harassment and Discrimination Standard Operating Procedure

# 5.2 Strengthening Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

The City wants employees to bring their whole selves to work, every day. Employees will conduct themselves at work with fairness and equity while fostering an inclusive culture that provides an accessible, safe and respectful work environment that is free from harassment, discrimination, violence or any unacceptable behaviour.

- Employees accept, respect and value individual differences within the workplace and commit to equitable opportunity for advancement and growth.
- Employees will combat unconscious biases to increase innovation, productivity, and creativity. By recognizing and mitigating biases, employees will enhance relationships, build community, and garner a greater appreciation for equity, diversity, and inclusivity.

#### Be more diverse and inclusive:

- Learn about unconscious bias and engage in self-reflection to uncover personal biases.
- Tell stories...and listen to the stories of others.
- Avoid stereotypes and over-generalizations.
- Separate feelings from facts.
- Have a diverse group of people around the decision-making table.
- Develop safe and brave spaces and be an active ally.
- Practice patience and empathy.

Find more information in: Gender Identity and Expression Protocol HRM-130 Accessibility Policy ANI-100 Multilingual Services Policy 14.14.0

# 6. Conduct Business with Integrity

#### 6.1 Preventing Fraud

The City takes fraud - and the threat of fraud - very seriously and commits to deter, detect, report, and correct fraud. The City expects everyone to be honest, without bias, without favour, and without outside/personal interests conflicting with work decisions. Recognize the signs and immediately report any unusual activity to a leader, the Internal Audit Division, or anonymously through the Fraud Prevention Hotline. There is no risk of reprimand, penalty or discipline for reporting suspect behaviour or fraud in good faith or for participation in a fraud investigation.

#### Some examples of fraud include:

- Providing a benefit or service to someone who does not qualify.
- Failure to disclose an actual or potential conflict of interest.
- Accepting bribes or kickbacks.
- Carrying on personal business during City of Brampton work hours using City resources.
- Forgery or alteration of a cheque, document, or account belonging to the City.
- Unauthorized reductions in fees or fines.

Find more information in: Corporate Fraud Prevention Policy GOV -110

# 6.2 Reimbursement For Loss of Regular Wages

The Corporation will reimburse employees for any loss of regular wages incurred as a result of being charged with a criminal or statutory offence directly related to their duties while on duty, where the employee is subsequently acquitted of such charges, or the charges are withdrawn. Where an employee is acquitted of such charges or the charges are withdrawn, the employee will be reimbursed for lost wages provided the Corporation is given an itemized account of the time within 30 days of legal resolution. This provision does not apply to volunteers and applies to employees only.

# 6.3 Avoiding Conflicts of Interest

A 'Conflict' or 'Conflict of Interest' is anything that interferes (or might be perceived to interfere) with an individual's or the City's ability to act impartially or in the best interests of the public. Employees have a duty to set aside personal views and focus on what is best for the City and the public. For that reason, employees have an obligation to disclose any actual or potential conflicts of interests. A conflict of interest occurs when employee conduct involves, or appears to involve, a conflict between public duties and personal interests. The City expects that employees immediately disclose conflicts and manage them appropriately.

- The City expects that employees act objectively and discern obligations for their personal business, family and social relationships, from their roles at work for the City.
- Employees will think critically and perform transactions at an 'arm's length' and independent of personal relationships, outside interests, and affiliations.
- Employees will declare a conflict of interest when it exists and appropriately remove themselves from those situations.

## 6.3.1 Outside Interests

Employees all have interests outside of the City (e.g. additional work, volunteer activities, etc.) Employees' interests must remain separate and distinct from job obligations and employees must never use their positions with the City to influence or further their private interests or those of friends, family, or anyone with whom they have a close personal relationship or business association. Employees will disclose any outside activities that present a conflict or potential conflict of interest.

## 6.3.2 Personal Relationships

Employees must excuse themselves from work situations and decision-making that may involve friends, relatives, or anyone with whom they have a close personal relationship or business association. Employees will never use their positions with the City to seek personal benefit or further the interests of those whom they have personal relationships or business associations. Employees will disclose any relationships that present a conflict or potential conflict of interest.

## 6.3.3 Political Activity and Support

If someone chooses to participate in political activity, it is a personal choice and it is not as a representative or on behalf of the City.

• Employees must never use their affiliation with the City to market or advance their personal political activities, and must ensure that personal activities and political associations will not influence, affect or compromise the obligations of their job with the City.

- Employees will be politically neutral in their work for the City, and be sensitive to maintaining a civic service that is non-partisan.
- The promotion of other causes and issues—including charitable initiatives—requires approval by the proper authority.
- Employees will disclose any political activity or affiliations that present a conflict of interest.

#### Some examples of conflict may include:

- A supervisory relationship with a family member or someone held in a close personal relationship.
- Selecting a friend, family member, or outside business associate as the vendor to supply products or services to the City, outside of required City processes.
- Giving favours to friends, family or outside business associates.

#### Find more information in:

<u>Conflict of Interest Provincial Offences Act Policy 2.2.1</u> <u>Conflict of Interest in Relation to the Administration of the AMP Policy - 01</u> <u>Recruiting and Retaining Top Talent Policy HRM-160</u> <u>Employment of Employee Relatives Standard Operating Procedure</u>

## 6.4 Managing Gifts and Entertainment

In business, it is common to foster relationships through the exchange of courtesies such as meals, gifts and entertainment. Gifting may also relate to customary protocol, social obligation, and etiquette. Regardless of the circumstance, the gifts and entertainment employees accept must not have the intent or design to influence their business decisions or judgement on behalf of the City. Similarly, employees must never give gifts with the intent of influencing a business decision or outcome.

## 6.4.1 Gifts

Gifts are anything of value given or received in relation to City business. Employees may only give or accept gifts that are customary, modest and culturally sensitive.

- Employees may accept gifts from the City of Brampton through offer or award. Employees may also accept a token of appreciation for attending or speaking at an event, conference or meeting hosted by a professional or government organization. Employees may also receive gifts for promoting Brampton in an official capacity as an Outbound or Inbound Delegation (e.g. an invitation from a guest or dignitary to employees travelling outside or Brampton, or an invitation to a guest or dignitary from Brampton, respectively).
- Employees will disclose gifts with a value of \$50 or more on the City's Lobbyist and Gift Registry. Employees will graciously decline a gift(s) and return it to the giver or donate the item to a charity in need—do not use it in a fundraising draw or for lottery purposes, unless proceeds go to a registered charity.
- Employees will only accept discounts on goods or services when it is the general business practice of the City to provide discounts (e.g. on transit, theatre tickets, etc.)
- Employees will not enter draws, giveaways etc., at trade shows and professional organizations where the supplier of the prize or giveaway is a potential or existing supplier and/or customer of the City.
- Employees must never solicit gifts of any value at any time.

# 6.4.2 Entertainment

Entertainment includes any event that we host or attend for business related purposes. Common examples may include meals, invitations to sporting events, theatrical performances and educational events. Entertainment should always be in good taste and consistent with usual business practice. Entertainment must not seem excessive or inappropriate. If unsure, consult with a leader or Human Resources before accepting an invitation.

Gifts and entertainment must not create a sense of obligation for either party. Employees may not accept, offer or give - directly or indirectly for ourselves or anyone else - gifts, entertainment or other benefits of value that are not reasonable and appropriate under the circumstances.

#### Think about this...

If a gift, invitation, or other benefit is offered, with the expectation of influencing an employee in duties performed or decision made, then it is considered a bribe, not a gift.

Find more information in: Donations and Gifts Received Administrative Directive FIN-130 Gift Registry Service Card

# 7. Safeguard Our Assets

# 7.1 Using City Property Responsibly

The things used at the City, or created for the City, belong to the City. Employees must ensure that the City's property - physical, intellectual and technological - are used properly and reflect a balance between the obligations to the City and to employees.

- Employees are responsible to protect and secure any City property from theft, fraud, harm, loss, misuse, especially those that are in an employee's custody or control, and are their responsibility.
- In general, employees should not use City property, technology, employees or other resources for activities other than the business of the City.
- Where personal use of City property occurs, it must never result in direct expenses being paid for by the City, or impede conducting business for the City.
- Employees must never use City property for illegal activity or for any purpose that might be considered offensive.

#### Defining 'City Property':

**Physical property** – means vehicles, furniture, tools and equipment, etc.

**Intellectual property** – is a creation of the mind (literary works, design, plans, etc.) of which the ownership or right to use may be owned by the City—it may be legally protected by a copyright, patent, trademark, etc. (e.g. logos, presentations, audios / videos, etc.).

**Technological property** – means computers, printers, mobile devices, software, network resources, etc.

**Find more information in:** Use of Information Technology Resources Administrative Directive ITS-100

## 7.2 Managing Expenses Responsibly

As stewards of City resources, employees manage the assets in their care responsibly and ethically to earn and maintain the public's trust. Employees are accountable to the public to ensure that the use of public money, property and resources is done with high regard for

efficiency and effectiveness.

- Employees are required to comply with the requirements set out in the City's expense policies, including claiming only reasonable expenses actually incurred for City business.
- Employees are accountable to follow authorization limits when authorizing expense commitments, transactions, or employee claims for reimbursement.
- Employees must not use a corporate purchasing card for any purpose other than for proper City business expenses and must manage the card in accordance with applicable policies and procedures.

Find more information in: Employee Business Expenses Administrative Directive FIN-160 Purchasing By-law

# 7.3 Managing Risk

Employees may encounter situations where they are expected to act or make difficult decisions under uncertain circumstances. To challenge this, employees will continuously strive to innovate and develop solutions to identify and mitigate risk more effectively - that is, limiting the impact of risk, so that if it does occur, the problem it creates is smaller and easier to fix.

- To help minimize actual risks employees are responsible for identifying, assessing and presenting potential risks to leaders for recommended actions.
- Employees will endeavour to make risk management part of the day-to-day management of their City duties.

Find more information in: Enterprise Risk Management Principles

## 8. Administration of the Code

#### 8.1 Acknowledgments and Renewals

As a condition of employment, and at the time of hiring, employees will sign an Acknowledgment certifying that they have read, understood and will comply with the Code. Annually, employees will complete an online Acknowledgment certifying that they have read, understood and will continue to comply with the Code.

#### 8.2 Code Interpretation

If there is any need for interpretation under the Code of Conduct, the Human Resources Director is responsible for rendering a decision.

#### 8.3 Review and Approval

The Code is reviewed regularly at least every two (2) years and approved by senior leadership.

#### 8.4 Revision History

Date	Description
2023/07/13	Reviewed and approved by CAO/CLT Section 1.2 updated to include the value - Equity

Date	Description
	Section 1.4 added – The Dress Code
2023/07/31	Modified 1.2 "Compassion means being considerate and patient". Removed the word "humanistic". This minor edit was authorized by Director, HR.
2025/02/05	Updated to include volunteers, definition of employee and volunteer, reimbursement of legal expenses in specific circumstances and administrative changes to update references to other applicable policy documents.
2027/02/05	Next Scheduled Review